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The West Woodberry Historic District consists of three single family dwellings, fourteen double or 

multiple-family houses, a store and a church all built between ca. 1843 and the 1870s. The granite 

rubble and ashlar houses and church are built of the same construction materials and with similar 

techniques. Local history cites Isaac Crowther as the stone mason responsible for the construction of 

the houses. There are four variant styles used for the double houses, two unique multiple dwellings, 

and three extant single houses built in the same style. Most of the houses are symmetrical double 

houses, four-bays-wide and two- to two-and-one-half stories in height. The Gothic Revival church 

designed by architect James W. Hogg, was begun in 1867 and dedicated in 18iO. A brick store dating 

to the mid- to late-nineteenth century is the only non-stone building contributing to the district. The 

only non-contributing building in the district is a modern metal structure which replaced a historic stone 

single dwelling that was destroyed within the past twenty years. 

Statement of Significance 

The West Woodberry Historic District is representative of the nineteenth century mill villages of the 

Jones Falls Valley which grew up around the valley's textile mills. The stone houses along Clipper 

Road, built between ca. 1840 and the 1870s, are among the earliest worker houses built specifically 

for the employees of the Woodberry mill complex. The Woodberry Mill (ca. 1843) was built during this 

same period, and it was with this and the later mills such as Park (1855), Druid {1865-67;1872), and 

Meadow (1877), that the residents of these houses were employed. The mill village is a significant and 

defining feature of the Jones Falls Valley, and the West Woodberry Historic District exemplifies the 

type and quality of development associated with these settlements. The district appears to meet the 

eligibility requirements for listing in the National Register under criterion C. 
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Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its various elements as it exists today. 

Summary 
The West Woodberry Historic District consists of three single family dwellings, fourteen double or multiple-family houses, a 
store and a church all built between ca. 1843 and the 1870s. The granite rubble and ashlar houses and church are built of the 
same construction materials and with similar techniques. Local history cites Isaac Crowther as the stone mason responsible 
for the construction of the houses. There are four variant styles used for the double houses, two unique multiple dwellings, 
and three extant single houses built in the same style. Most of the houses are symmetrical double houses, four-bays-wide 
and two- to two-and-one-half stories in height. The Gothic Revival church designed by architect James W. Hogg, was begun 
in 1867 and dedicated in 1870. A brick store dating to the mid- to late-nineteenth century is the only non-stone building 
contributing to the district. The only non-contributing building in the district is a modem metal structure which replaced a 
historic stone single dwelling that was destroyed within the past twenty years. 

General Description 
The West Woodberry Historic District is located along Clipper Road north of Union Avenue in the Hampden-Woodberry 
community. This portion of Clipper Road roughly parallels the former Baltimore & Susquehanna/Northern Central Railroad 
tracks until it dead-ends near 3711-3713 Clipper Road and the former quarry behind it. The double houses are confined to 
the west side of the road, each straddling double lots. The store and the single-family dwellings are located along the east 
side of the road. The facades of the single houses are oriented to the railroad tracks and the Woodberry and Park mills on the 
opposite side of the tracks. The side of the hill above the tracks is engu~ed in vegetation, though historically it was probably 
cleared. The church is located on Druid Park Drive, which runs perpendicular to Clipper Road. The church sits on a small hill 
above the midway point of the otherwise linear district. A low granite retaining wall starts at the base of Clipper Road (south 
of and in front of 3506-3508) and runs in front of the yards on the west side of the road to Druid Park Drive, where it 
terminates by bracketing the yard of 3538-3540 Clipper Road. The following is a building-by-building description of the 
district. 

B-1306-A: Clifton Heating/former store, 3501 Clipper Road 
Two-story, three-bay-wide by four-bay-deep, gable-front, brick commercial building. 6/6 wood sash windows and double-leaf 
ha~-glass entry doors. Brick laid in an eight-course American bond. Corbeled cap interior chimney and corbeled cornice and 
corners. Asphalt shingle roof. Jack arched windows with 8112 wood sashes on sides. Former store serving people in West 
Woodberry community. Probably owned by the factory. ca. 1870. 

B-1306-B: Double House, 3506-3508 Clipper Road 
Two-story, four-bay-wide, symmetrical, side-gabled, granite rubblestone double house. Two single-leaf entry doors are 
located in the central bays of the first floor; each is surmounted by a transom. A one-story, two-bay hip-roofed porch with 
square posts shades the entrances. Side gabled, asphalt-shingled roof. Two brick interior side chimneys on south elevation 
are intact; the two north chimneys have been removed. A one-story, hip-roofed, stuccoed masonry ell with two interior 
chimneys is axially divided and shared by both units. Windows are 6/6 wood sashes in 3506; 1/1 replacement sashes in 
3508. 

B-1306-C: Double House, 3511-3513 Clipper Road 
Two-and-one-half-story, two- (possibly three) bay-wide, side-gabled, granite rubblestone double house (possibly built as a 
single dwelling). The facade appears to be located on the track side (east elevation) of the structure, which is now overgrown 
in vegetation. The side-gabled roof is clad in asphalt shingles. Interior end chimneys have been removed. Frame additions on 
the north, east, and south elevations of the building were made in the mid- to late twentieth century. Windows have been 
replaced with 3/1 wood sashes, 1 /1 sashes and decorative concrete· block. 

(see continuation sheet 2) 



4. Owner of Property (continuation sheet 1 ) 

Property Address 

3501 Clipper Road: 

3506 Clipper Road: 

3508 Clipper Road: 

3514 Clipper Road: 

3516 Clipper Road: 

3523 Clipper Road: 

Property Owner Name and Address 

Albert and Gloria Longmire, 8 Coastal Drive, Berlin, MD 21811 

Robert Lee Rudasill, 3506 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

Shirley and Lawrence Townsley, 3508 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

Mary C. Bergland, 4204 Wickford Road, Baltimore, MD 21210 

Viola M. Walsh, 3516 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

Glen Treslar, 3523 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

3526-3528 Clipper Rd: Walter B. Koppel, 1900 E. Northern Parkway, Baltimore, MD 21239 

3538 Clipper Road: 

3540 Clipper Road: 

3604 Clipper Road: 

3605 Clipper Road: 

3606 Clipper Road: 

3608 Clipper Road: 

3612 Clipper Road: 

3614 Clipper Road: 

3624 Clipper Road: 

Leroy Egenes, 3538 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

Molly V. Golden, 2420 Fleet Street, Baltimore, MD 21224 

Elizabeth M. Vandergucht, 3604 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

Charles E. Briston, 3535 Clipper Road Baltimore, MD 21211 

Walter B. Koppel, 1900 E. Northern Parkway, Balltimore, MD 21239 

Louise Shoemaker, 3608 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

Walter B. Koppel, 1900 E. Northern Parkway, Baltimore, MD 21239 

Mildred I. Ruby, 3614 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

Mildred I. Ruby, 3614 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

3626 Clipper Road: Walter B. Koppel, 1900 E. Northern Parkway, Baltimore, MD. 21239 

3638 Clipper Road: Bernadine E. Smith, 3638 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

3640 Clipper Road: Howard S. Watkins, 3640 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

3652-3654 Clipper Rd: Walter B. Koppel, 1900 E. Northern Parkway, Baltimore, MD. 21239 

3700-3702 Clipper Rd: Sandra and Robert Fink, 3702 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

Walter B. Koppel, 1900 E. Northern Parkway, Battimore, MD 21239 

Helen Gabinet, 3710 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

Survey No. B-1306 

3708 Clipper Road: 

3710 Clipper Road: 

3711 Clipper Road: 

3713 Clipper Road: 

Robert Payne c/o Toby Thompson, 3711 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

Linda A. Wessner, 3713 Clipper Road, Baltimore, MD 21211 

2000 Druid Park Drive: Woodberry Methodist Church, 2054 Druid Park Drive, Baltimore, MD 21211 



7. Description (continuation sheet 2) Survey No. B-1306 

8-1306-D: Double House, 3514-3516 Clipper Road 
Two-story, four-bay-wide, symmetrical, side-gabled, granite rubblestone double house. Two single-leaf entry doors are 
located in the central bays of the first floor; each is surmounted by a transom. A one-story, two-bay, hip-roofed porch with 
modem wrought iron supports shades the entrances. Side gabled, asphalt-shingled roof. Two brick interior side chimneys 
on north elevation are intact; the two south chimneys have been removed. A one-story, hip-roofed, stuccoed masonry ell 
with one extant interior chimney is axially divided and shared by both units. Windows are 1/1 replacement sashes. 

8-1306-E: House, 3525 Clipper Road 
Two-and-one-half-story, two- (three on the east elevation) bay-wide, side-gabled, granite rubblestone house. The facade 
appears to be located on the track side (east elevation) of the structure, which is now obscured by vegetation and additions. 
The side-gabled roof is clad in standing seam metal and has two brick interior end chimneys. Frame shed additions are 
located on the north and south elevations, and additions have been made to the east side as well. The central bay on the 
east elevation has paired windows on the second and half stories. The first floor is not visible. Replacement windows 
include 1/1 hung sashes. 

8-1306-F: House, 3605 Clipper Road 
Two- to two-and-one-half-story, two- (possibly three on the east elevation) bay-wide, side-gabled, granite rubblestone 
house. The facade appears to be located on the track side (east elevation) of the structure, which is now obscured by 
vegetation. The side-gabled roof is clad in asphalt and has two brick interior end chimneys. A frame shed addition is located 
on the south elevation. Windows are boarded over. 

8-1306-G: Double House, 3526-3528 Clipper Road 
Two-story, four-bay-wide, symmetrical, side-gabled, granite rubblestone double house. Two single-leaf entry doors are 
located in the central bays of the first floor; each is surmounted by a transom. A one-story, two-bay, hip-roofed porch with 
square posts shades the entrances. Side gabled, asphalt-shingled roof. Two brick interior side chimneys on south elevation 
are intact, as are the two north chimneys. A one-story, hip-roofed, stuccoed masonry ell is axially divided and shared by 
both units. Windows are 6/6 wood sashes in 3526; 2/2 wood sashes in 3528. 

8-1306-H: Double House, 3538-3540 Clipper Road 
Two-story, four-bay-wide, symmetrical, side-gabled, granite rubblestone double house. Two single-leaf entry doors are 
located in the central bays of the first floor; each is surmounted by a transom. A one-story, two-bay, hip-roofed porch 
shades the entrances. Side gabled, standing-seam metal roof. Two brick interior side chimneys on south elevation are 
intact but stuccoed; the two north chimneys are intact and unstuccoed. A one-story, hip-roofed, stuccoed masonry ell with 
two interior chimneys is axially divided and shared by both units. Windows are 6/6 and 6/1 wood sashes in 3540; 1 /1 
sashes in 3538. 

8-1306-1: Double House, 3604-3606 Clipper Road 
Two-story, four-bay-wide, three-bay-deep, gable front, granite rubblestone double house. Two single-leaf entry doors are 
located in the central bays of the first floor; each is surmounted by a transom. A single leaf entry door and transom is 
located in the second bay of both the north and south elevations of the double house. Two brick interior ridge chimneys with 
corbeled caps protrude from the standing seam metal clad roof. The gable ends featured brackets and bracketed cornice 
returns, though only the unit at 3604 retains these details; 3606 has been altered with vinyl or aluminum. 1/1 replacement 
sash windows. A one-story concrete-block and granite-veneered addition has been made to the rear of 3604, probably in 
the mid-twentieth century. Permastoned steps and a metal awning replace the original porch and step configuration. This 
house was probably built in the 1860-1870 period. It is similar to 3708-3710 Clipper Road. 

(see continuation sheet 3) 
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8-1306-J: Multiple Dwelling, 3608; 3612-3614 Clipper Road 
This multiple dwelling is the result of a double-house added to what is thought to be the oldest house in the neighborhood 
(3614) built ca. 1840. The difference in stonework supports this story. Smaller, less-regular stones with a brownish cast 
were used in 3614, verses larger, squarish granite rubble used in the other houses. The house is set back from the road. 
3608 is oriented to the south, and is a one-and-one-half-story, T-shaped building with forward-projecting twin gables 
flanked by side-gabled wings. Brick jack arches span the hung sash windows, some 4/4, 8/8, 111 , and other configurations. 
Lancet-patterned vergeboards are employed in the gables, and a similar detail is used in the eaves. Two interior ridge 
chimneys of brick protrude from the asphalt-shingled roof. The mass of 3608 and 3612 abuts 3614, and consequently, a 
gablette on the north side of 3608/3612 is cut off where i1 meets the slope of 3614's roof. 3614 is two-stories-high, four­
bays-wide, asymmetrical, and side-gabled, with an interior end chimney of brick. Windows are 6/1 hung sashes, probably 
originally 6/6. 3608-3614 Clipper Road is the most unusual building in the district. It looks like a ca. 1860 Downing cottage 
intersecting an earlier vernacular house. 

8-1306-K: Double House, 3624-3626 Clipper Road 
Two-and-one-half story, four-bay-wide, symmetrical, side-gabled, granite rubblestone double house. Two single-leaf entry 
doors are located in the central bays of the first floor; each is surmounted by a transom. Four brick interior side chimneys 
(two each on north and south elevations) are intact but stuccoed on the south elevation. Two separate one-story, shed­
roofed, frame additions are located to the rear. Brick jack arches over windows and doors; windows are 1/1 replacement 
sashes, with 3/3 sashes in half-story. This house with its Greek Revival form appears to date to the 1840 or 1850s. It is 
similar to 3652-3654 Clipper Road. 

8-1306-L: Double House, 3638-3640 Clipper Road 
Two-story, four-bay-wide, symmetrical, side-gabled, grani1e rubbfestone double house. Two single-leaf entry doors are 
located in the central bays of the first floor; each is surmounted by a transom. A one-story, three-bay, shed-roofed porch 
with concrete-block posts shades the south entrance. Standing-seam metal roof. 6/6 wood sash windows and 1/1 metal 
replacement sashes. 

8-1306-M: Double House, 3652-3654 Clipper Road 
Two-and-one-half story, four-bay-wide, symmetrical, side-gabled, granite rubblestone double house. Two single-leaf entry 
doors are located in the central bays of the first floor; each is surmounted by a transom. Four brick interior side chimneys 
(two each on south and north elevations) are intact but appear to have been rebuilt. Brick jack arches over windows and 
doors; windows are 1/1 replacement sashes. This house with its Greek Revival form appears to date to the 1840s or 
1850s. It is similar to 3624-3626 Clipper Road. 

8-1306-N: Double House, 3700-3702 Clipper Road 
Two-and-one-half-story, four-bay-wide, single pile, side gabled, grani1e rubblestone double house. One interior end 
chimney on south side of house (formerly two). Roof of 3700 clad in standing seam metal; 3702 roof clad in asphalt 
shingles. Multi-pane single-leaf door with three pane sidelight in south entrance; single-leaf door with transom in north 
entrance. Stone lintels over door and 6/1 and 6/6 wood sash windows; 3/3 wood sashes in half-story. One-story, shed­
roof, board-and-batten outbuilding/semi-detached addition to the rear. This house with its Greek Revival form appears to 
date to the 1840s or 1850s. 

8 -1306-0: Double House, 3708-3710 Clipper Road 
Two-story, four-bay-wide, three-bay-deep, gable front, granite rubblestone double house. Two single-leaf entry doors with 
transoms are located in the central bays of the first floor. A single leaf entry door and transom is located in the second bay 
of both the north and south elevations of the double house. Two brick interior ridge chimneys with corbeled caps protrude 
from the asphalt shingle clad roof. The gable ends feature cornice returns. Wood lintels over 1/1 replacement sash 
windows. A shed dormer has been added to the north slope of the roof. This house was probably built in the 1860-1870 
period. It is similar to 3604-3606 Clipper Road. 

(see continuation sheet 4) 
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8-1306-P: Double House, 3711-3713 Clipper Road 
Two-story, three-bay-wide side-gable with intersecting front gable, rubblestone double house with two flanking two-story 
wings, one two-bays-wide and one three-bays-wide, stepped back from facade of central block. 1/1 wood sash 
replacement sashes with muntin inserts. Cornice brackets. Four interior end brick chimneys with corbeled caps. Wings 
have interior ridge chimneys. Granite with contrasting black granite ashlar as quoins and lintels. Standing seam metal and 
asphalt shingle roof. 

8-1306-0: Woodberry Methodist Church, 2000 Druid Pari< Drive 
The cornerstone of the Woodberry Methodist Church was laid in 1867. James W. Hogg was cited as the architect in a 
contemporary newspaper article (Hampden-Woodberry Vertical Files, Baltimore Museum of Industry). The church was 
dedicated in December 1870. The church is a large, granite rubblestone and uncoursed rough ashlar Gothic Revival style 
building. It has a front gable and inset, three-stage, square tower located in the southeast corner. The tower may have 
had a steeple at some point, but it now terminates in a flat roof. The tower is offset on the southwest corner by two 
buttresses capped with a castellated and corbelled turret. The church features limestone trim around the window and door 
openings and limestone tracery in the main window above the central entrance doors. A second set of double-leaf 
entrance doors are located in the tower. All openings are pointed arches, with the exception of a round window below the 
peak of the gable. The church is four full bays deep, and each bay is articulated by engaged buttresses with limestone 
caps (one blind half-bay is located on the west side corresponding to the inset tower on the east side). The north end of 
the sanctuary abuts a lower gable-roofed mass that houses church offices. The church is roofed in slate shingles. 

3535 Clipper Road: 
A single-family house, formerly located at the bottom of Druid Park Road, was destroyed by a truck that lost its brakes and 
plowed into the structure. A modem metal building has replaced the historic stone structure. The modem building is the 
only non-contributing resource within the boundaries of the proposed historic district. 
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Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and support. 

Statement of Significance 
The West Woodberry Historic District is representative of the nineteenth century mill villages of the Jones Falls Valley which 
grew up around the valley's textile mills. The stone houses along Clipper Road, built between ca. 1840 and the 1870s, are 
among the earliest worker houses built specifically for the employees of the Woodberry mill complex. The Woodberry Mill (ca. 
1843) was built during this same period, and it was with this and the later mills such as Park (1855), Druid (1865-67;1872), and 
Meadow (1877), that the residents of these houses were employed. The mill village is a significant and defining feature of the 
Jones Falls Valley, and the West Woodberry Historic District exemplifies the type and quality of development associated with 
these settlements. The district appears to meet the eligibility requirements for listing in the National Register under criterion C. 

History 
The histories of Baltimore City and County are intertwined. The county, which included present-day Baltimore City until 1850, 
was established in 1659. At that time, the county encompassed land on either side of the head of the Chesapeake (currently 
parts of Cecil and Harford counties), and extended west beyond present day Frederick County. After several reductions in 
area, the county assumed its present form by 1773. Early settlers of the county were concentrated along navigable waterways. 
David Jones settled on 380 acres on the east side of the eponymous Jones Falls in 1661. In 1729, the Maryland Assembly 
enacted the establishment of a town named Baltimore near the mouth of the Jones Falls, after which land was purchased and 
platted on the western bank of the small river (Brugger 1988:66). In 1745, the settlement known as Jones Town east of the 
falls, merged with settlements west of the falls to become Baltimore Town (Brugger 1988:66). 

Baltimore Town emerged in the eighteenth century as a dominant colonial port, earning the title of the fastest growing city in the 
nascent United States during the 1790s (Brugger 1988:132-133;141 ). An influx of German settlers brought wheat and grain 
culture to the county that like so many other Maryland counties, had relied on land-intensive tobacco cultivation. Mills 
established along the powerful Jones Falls produced flour for the active domestic and export markets. Distilleries processed 
county rye into whisky. 

After the 1807 trade embargo imposed by the U.S. government and aimed at British trade, a burgeoning textiles industry in the 
Jones Falls Valley wove cotton and wool for domestic consumption (NRHP Mt. Washington Mill). The Mount Washington 
Mill built in 1808 as the Washington Cotton Factory, "represents the first major attempt in Maryland to manufacture textile 
goods" (NRHP 1990; B-1027). The mill was the first in the Jones Falls Valley textile industry which dominated the valley by the 
mid-nineteenth century. The Whitehall Flour Mill in Hampden converted to textile weaving around the same time (Zembala 
1995:103). 

(see continuation sheet 5) 
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Though the county enjoyed an extensive system of roads, alternative forms of transportation were sought. Between 1783 and 
the 1820s, speculative and abortive canal ventures failed to provide a water-borne trade route from the county's interior to 
port (Scharf 1971: 342). Roads, however consistently deteriorated, remained the principal means of shipment. The advent of 
the railroad in the 1830s became the primary catalyst for growth along Jones Falls Valley and north. The railroad's impact is 
clearly visible in the pockets of suburban and industrial development which relied equally on the success and expediency of 
the railroad. Baltimore County history parallels that of the railroad's from the second quarter of the nineteenth century into the 
mid-twentieth century. 

During the summer of 1827, York County, Pennsylvania toll road owners consulted with Baltimore business men about the 
possibility of creating a railroad link between Baltimore and York Haven, above the falls of the Conewingo River near the 
projected route of the Pennsylvania Canal (Gunnarsson 1991 :12-13). A charter for the Baltimore & Susquehanna Railroad 
(B&S) was granted by the Maryland legislature February 13, 1828, but persistent trade rivalries between Baltimore and 
Philadelphia prevented the issuance of a charter in Pennsylvania (Gunnarsson 1991 :12-14). 

Despite the Pennsylvania legislature's denial of a charter, the cornerstone for the Baltimore and Susquehanna Railroad was 
laid on August 8, 1829, approximately 60 feet from the North Avenue Bridge in Balt.imore (Gunnarsson 1991 :14; Scharf 1971: 
343). To minimize effort through the hilly terrain north of Baltimore, the Jones Falls Valley was chosen as the route northward. 
Construction started along the west bank of the Jones Falls. The first run between Belvedere Station and Relay, south of 
present-day Lake Roland, was made on 4 July 1831 (Gunnarsson 1991 :15; Scharf 1971: 344), followed in August 1832, by 
the line's first steam locomotive, the "Herald" (Scharf 1971 : 344). 

The railroad fostered the development of mid-nineteenth century villages in Baltimore County. As the nineteenth century 
progressed, industry continued to expand in the county aided by the efficient transportation of industrial products to port via 
railroad. In 1843, the textile-producing Woodberry Mill (MHT B-1035) of Horatio Gambrill and David Carroll was built east of 
the Baltimore & Susquehanna Railroad tracks. The railroad, later known as the Northern Central, was essential to the 
development of north Baltimore and Baltimore County in the nineteenth century, providing passenger and freight service as 
early as the 1830s. Woodberry was the first mill built in Woodberry specifically for the manufacture of cotton duck, or sailcloth, 
a material in demand by the clipper ships of Baltimore. Following Woodberry Mill was Clipper Mill (1855; 1865 [MHT B-1029]), 
originally operated as Whitehall Flour Mill before its conversion to cotton milling; Park Mill (1855 [MHT B-1028]) was built for 
the manufacture of seine twine; Druid Mill (1865-1867; 1872 [MHT B-1030]) produced textiles until 1917; and Meadow Mill 
(1877 [MHT B-3719]), one of the latest mills in the valley was built for the spinning of cotton into sailcloth (Bullock 1971 :5-7; 
Lewand 1989:70; Zembala 1995:100-103). 

Surrounding the mills are several self-contained communities of worker housing built by mill owners for use by their 
employees (Lewand 1989:70). The granite ashlar used in the construction of the houses of West Woodberry and the 
Woodberry, Park Mill, and Druid Mills was quarried near Lake Roland (Hampden-Woodberry 1976:n.p.). Other enclaves of 
worker housing, such as Brick Hill (MHT B-4205) and Stone Hill, grew up around the mills of Hampden-Woodberry. West 
Woodberry was historically a community of worker housing built around the Woodberry Mill and Park Mills of Horatio Gambrill 
and David Carroll. The mills and housing were later owned by William Hooper, who constructed the Meadow Mill in 1877. 
The community remains intact, though the mills have long-since ceased operations. Fifteen stone houses dating to ca. 1840-
1870, a stone church (1867), and a brick store (ca. 1870) compose this district. In addition to its domestic context, the West 
Woodberry Historic District is associated with the nineteenth century mill industry which gave rise to the Hampden­
Woodberry community. 

The foundry of Robert Poole began operations in Baltimore north of North Avenue, near the former Bolton Shops of the B&S 
railroad in the 1840s. The Poole & Hunt Union Works relocated to Woodberry in 1853. The foundry cast structural and 
architectural ironwork, and machine parts for neighboring textile mills (MHT B-1007). Spur lines from the B&S railroad served 
the foundry and other Hampden-Woodberry mills. 

(see continuation sheet 6) 



8. Significance (continuation sheet 6) Survey No. B-1306 

The twentieth century was a period of transition and decline in the traditional mill industries of the Jones Falls valley. In 
1932, The Poole Company was created out of the remnants of Poole & Hunt. The company built a factory at the junction of 
Union Avenue, the railroad corridor, and Clipper Road on land created by Poole & Hunfs consistent dumping of foundry 
sand in the swampy shore of the Jones Falls (McGrain 1985:222). The Woodberry Mills diversified and sought cheaper 
labor in the south. The company scaled back operations in Hampden-Woodberry and began operating mills in Tallassee, 
Alabama (Hampden-Woodberry File, Baltimore Museum of Industry). 

Eligibility recommended Eligibility not recommended __ 
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10. Geographical Data 
Acreage of nominated property: approximately twelve acres 
Quadrangle name Baltimore West 7.5' 
UTM Reference do NOT complete UTM references 

zone easting northing 

Verbal boundary description and justification 

(see continuation sheet 6) 

Quadrangle scale 1 :24.000 

Boundaries include all buildings and parcels fronting Clipper Road north of Union Ave. from 3501 Clipper Rd. to 3713 Clipper Rd., inclusive, and 2000 
Druid Park Dr. Boundaries include the concentration of mid-19C stone millworker housing, a church, and store associated with local Woodberry mills. 

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries 

state code county code 

state code county code 

11. Form Prepared By 

name/title Kerri Culhane/Project Architectural Historian 

organization John Milner Associates, Inc. date 10/1999 

street & number 5250 Cherokee Avenue, Suite 41 O telephone 703/354-9737 

city or town Alexandria state Virginia 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in 
the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41 , Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only and do not constitute any 
infringement of individual property rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical Trust 
DHCP/DHCD 
100 Community Place 
Crownsville, MD 21032 



Jnventory No. _B_-_13_0_6 _____ _ 

PRESERVATION VISION 2000; THE MARYLAND PLAN 
STATEWIDE HISTORIC CONTEXTS 

I. Geographic Region: 

D Eastern Shore 
D Western Shore 
~ Piedmont 
D Western Maryland 

(all Eastern Shore counties, and Cecil) 
(Anne Arundel, Calvert, Charles, Prince George's and St. Mary's) 
(Baltimore City, Baltimore, Carroll, Frederick, Hruford, Howard, Montgomery) 
(Allegany, Garrett and Washington) 

II. Chronological/Developmental Periods: 

D Rural Agrarian Intensification A.D. 1680-1815 
~ Agricultural-Industrial Transition A.D. 1815- I 870 
~ Industrial/Urban Dominance A.D. 1870-1930 
D Modem Period A.D. 1930-Presenl 
D Unknown Period ( Oprehistoric; 0historic) 

111. Historic Period Themes: 

D Agriculture 
~ Architecture, Landscape Architecture, and Community Planning 
D Economic (Commercial and Industrial) 
D Government/Law 
D Military 
0 Religion 
0 Social/Educational/Cultural 
0 Transportation 

IV. Resource Type: 

Category: District - ------------------------------------
Historic Environment: V-"""'il;;.;;.la=-e ______________ _______________ _ 

Historic Function(s) and Use(s): DOMESTIC: single dwelling; multiple dwelling COMMERCE/TRADE: department 

store RELIGION: church 

Known Design Source: James W. Hogg. arch itect of church; none 
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